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ITEM NO.9:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2003 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUl (C.C. No. 01-244, C.C. No. 02-8, C.C. No. 02-53; Bill No. __ (2001);
and Misc.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a quorum. So, I'll be calling the public meeting officially
open at this time. And, Members, if there be no objections the Chair would
recommend acceptance of all testimoni given from 6 p.m. this evening.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. So ordered. We will continue with the comments
from the West Maui community. Next, we have Vicki Betts. And following Vicki
this evening will be Jon Kinimaka.
MS. BETTS: Good evening, I'm the ... I'm Vicki Betts. I'm the Resort Manager of
Kahana Village and have been at the Village for the last 15 years. In my 15
years, last year was the year's, was the worst year for the algae bloom. From
May to July, we had a problem with the algae washing up on our beach. As soon
as we would clean the beach, more algae would wash up on the shore as the
algae was floating in the water. The smell from the algae was like a sewage
smell and our neighbors thought that we had a sewage leak. We cleaned our
beach Monday thru Friday and the cost to our association for the removal the
algae was $16,000. In revenue, we lost $20,000 in business to the guests not
wanting to stay at our resort. In return, they will remember this and tell their
friends about the experience. Some quests will never come back again. I'm
requesting the Mayor and Council Members for their help. Please include and
approve funding for the sand replenishment barge. We do not want to have
another algae bloom this year and suffer the loss in business. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Vicki. .. .(pause) . .. Hi, Jon.
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MR. KINIMAKA: Hi, Council Member. Chair Hokama, Council Members, aloha. My
name is Jon Kinimaka. I'm a volunteer for Friends of the Maui Drug Court. A
nonprofit helping to support the Maui Drug Court in the Second Circuit Court
serving Maui County. First of all, I would like to thank each and every member of
this Council as well as Mayor Apana and his Administration for supporting the
expansion of this life saving program that diverts nonviolent drug offenders from
incarceration into intense court supervised treatment. The Maui Drug Court has
enrolled over 140 residents of Maui County since the programs inception on
August 24,2000. Your generous support has allowed the Maui Drug Court to
make a significant impact, impact on Maui's drug ep ... epidemic that has put
Maui on the map as the "ice" capital of the world. County funding has made it
possible to expand the Maui Drug Court to add 80 clients of all whom have
already been added and are currently receiving program services. Twenty-four
men and women of Maui County have successfully graduated from the Maui
Drug Court and are now productive members of society. Twenty more clients are
projected to graduate this June. Our graduates continue to ... to participate in the
Maui Drug Court's Alumni Program. Two graduates are now employed as
counselors for the Maui Drug Court. Four drug free babies have been born to
mothers enrolled in the Maui Drug Court and three participants are pregnant.
One hundred and seventy children ... one hundred and seventy children have
parents getting clean and sober in the Maui Drug Court. This is the most
effective drug prevention that we can do for these children. Over 12,000 drug
tests through the end of this year. Ninety-nine percent are clean. Also, as a
result of County funding the Maui Drug Court in collaboration with the Maui
Community Correctional Center has implemented last September a new
component of the Maui Drug Court that allows nonviolent sentenced offenders on
parole for furlough to participate in Track 4 of the Maui Drug Court providing a
community reintegration program for inmates. Together the Maui Drug Court and
the Maui Community Correctional Center have converted Dorm 3 at the jail into
an isolated 24-bed in custody treatment program that is staffed with two fulltime
Drug Court Counselors providing 12 hours per day of treatment services for
these inmates. Inmates who successfully, successfully complete no less than 90
days of this in custody treatment, will then be released into the supervision and
monitoring of the Maui Drug Court's Outpatient Program providing a much
needed community reintegration program for these inmates. This component of
the Maui Drug Court is first, is the first of its kind in the state, and will soon
receive official national recognition as a model program. Please continue to
support the Maui Drug Court by continuing the $100,000 County Budget line item
for next fiscal year. This line item will provide funding for support, to support 40
clients in the Maui Drug Court next fiscal year. I'd also like to add one thing real
quickly here and I heard a lot of testimony tonight about a lot of programs that
involve our children. And I, I support all of these programs and I ask the Council
to consider and, and think of all of these programs as drug prevention.

-3-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 27, 2002
Lahaina Civic Center Social Hall

Hopefully, these programs will get the funding that they need and, such as MEO
Head Start, Boys and Girls Club, the, the skateboard park. This way we don't
have to worry about the kids not having anything to do and getting involved with
drugs and we won't have to worry about our prisons overcrowding and having to
fund the Maui Drug Court Program anymore. But once again, thank you and
mahalo. Aloha.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Jon. And though Mr. Kinimaka doesn't say
much. I can tell you this man is a hero. He's a volunteer. He does not get paid.
And for years and years, he's advocated a program that benefits not only the
people that have a bad problem, which they're trying to get rid of but the families
and friends that get impacted by those that are associated with basically bad
drugs. So, thank you very much, Jon.
MR. KINIMAKA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're always happy to see you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next, we have Donald Malcolm. Don, I know you were here. Okay.
Well, if he comes back he has another chance. Linda Nelson. Linda, are you
still here? Okay, Linda will have one more chance at the end. Mr. Joe Pluta and
following Joe, Tyler Lee.
MR. PLUTA: Aloha. Thank you. My name is Joe Pluta, West Maui Taxpayers.
Council Members, thank you very much for coming tonight. And Tyler Lee who's
also a member of our West Maui Taxpayers left 'cause he's ... whatever, he
thought we were, didn't have a quorum, he had to go. So, I, I presented written
testimony. I think you all have a copy of that sheet and I don't want to have to go
over each one of those things 'cause you have that and take the time. But I'd like
to amplify on a couple things. One, is that I, I know you're aware from the
previous ... correspondence and things that we've sent in other testimony about
the nearly 40 percent of the entire County revenues tax base that comes from
West Maui and then when you add the TAT from West Maui basically about
40 percent of the entire County Budget is coming from West MauL And so, that's
a revenue source that we want to protect. I would think you want to protect your
revenue source. So, I made these, some of things that are highlighted to you is
potential dangers to that because there's no guarantee that's always going to
stay that way. So, as property values go down or if adversity happens to the
area, flooding, stinking seaweed, these kind of things that gets notoriety, then
you've got a danger to that investment and then you don't want to, that's what
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you don't--my opinion you want to protect your investments because this is the
revenue you need. It's just a little alarming to look at, you know, when I think
each, each year I've been looking at how much capital improvement projects are
dedicated to West Maui and how much of that 40 million we're getting back from
the County, it looks, you know, somewhere around 4 or 5, $6 million back. Forty,
Forty-five in, six back, forty-five. So, I don't know it seems a little bit out of
proportion sometimes. You know and I'm not saying that there should be an
equal dollar for dollar return for what you put in because there's certainly--that's
not that idea. You know it's a, it's a resort area. It's producing a lot of income.
It's got drawbacks and resources of the whole County, so it should be putting in a
lot more than it's getting back. But again, when, you got to protect that
infrastructure to keep that investment so it's guaranteed that it's not going to start
going the other way. I'm afraid the best island in the world thing could go, best
island in the world could be lost when stinking seaweed comes out. And the
Dengue fever, I like the way everybody attacked that. I think those programs got
to keep going, just keep the, those kind of alarm things. But to eliminate that
sand pumper barge from the Budget is not a good idea. I mean there's got to be
a way to keep this algae problem I think it's very important to get back, back
funded again. You know when you talk about some of the things that,
playground improvements, bathrooms, the bathrooms in Lahaina town. I mean
for people to be having the problem with drugs under the banyan tree and not a
place to go to the bathroom in Lahaina town when it's the most important area for
people to come to. I mean there's got to be something done there. I mean
there's been talk about it for a long time. Please look at a way to, you know, that
this, if, if they can do some enhancements to those courthouse bathrooms that
really should be done.
MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MR. PLUTA: Thank you.
Thank you.

Thanks a lot for what you're doing. We'll see you later.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Joe. Hold on, Joe. I have, we have a question from
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Thanks, Joe. I've got a question to ask you
because it's the second time that I've heard about the sand pumper barge. Now,
you're talking about accumulated seaweed, how do you think that sand pumper
barge is going to help get rid of the seaweed smell?
MR. PLUTA: Well, you know, that's, well, I had never heard of a sand pumper barge
until it was brought to our attention by some documents that were sent to us,
which we sent to the, the Mayor's Office. And we've had conversations with him
and, and I think it was Public Works and they're the ones that came up with the
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idea that it was a way to address the algae problem. This last seaweed that was
here, in the past through the West Maui's Taxpayers Association in the West
Maui improvement foundations and County grants, we picked up seaweed that
was actually be able to pick up. This last seaweed was so porous that you
couldn't pick it up. You couldn't put it in bags. You, you, if you had a burlap bag
it actually eased right through the bag and it's the most weird variety. So-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, so, let me ask you, Joe, because I, I really want to
get the specifics of this.
MR. PLUTA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Did anybody or has anybody told you that the pump,
the sand pumper barge, which in my understanding was to replenish sand on the
beach was also going to be designed so that it's, it's an algae sucking barge-MR. PLUTA: Well, let me-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --to get some of the algae out of the water?
MR. PLUTA: --the way, the way I understand that this thing works, my understanding of
the way it works and the way it's been explained to me is that, by sucking up the
water and sand and blowing the sand back on the beach as it's taking that water
and sand and algae mixture, it's retaining the algae in a siphon, a sired(?) off
tank while the sand gets thrown back on the beach. So that there's a way of
separating the algae and the sand and that the--so the algae is being collected
while the sand is being pumped back on the beach. That's the technology that
was explained to me and that's the way I understood it to work. So, whoever's
been looking at the, the actual specifications of this was all, has been presented
and I guess the people who, who, who believe that that's what it would do. So-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, thank you very much. I'm just trying to,
I'm just trying to understand the concept because we were told last year this was
the, the best thing to do and then this year we were told there all kinds
of... environmental concerns and you can't do just pick up the sand. So, we're
getting completely different stories from the Administration. I'm just, I'm trying to
understand the, the package because I understand it a little bit different. The
sand being for beach, beach replenishment and the ability to pick up algae is a
totally different project.
MR. PLUTA: Well, the thing it was sucking up the sand supposedly was also sucking
up water and algae with it and then it was pumping the sand back on the beach
but still retaining in holding tanks the, the algae. That's, that's the way it was
explained to me and the way I understood it.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, I'll, I'll research it a little bit more and
we'll find out Administration exactly what this project is and we'll go from there.
Thank you.
MR. PLUTA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. PLUTA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Joe.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, we have Michael Sullivan and Patrick Sullivan.
MR. M. SULLIVAN: Aloha, Maui Council Members, and the Mayor's Budget staff. My
name is Michael Sullivan. I represent the Wainee Street Limited Partnership. I
would like to respectfully submit that the Council consider appropriating funds to
remedy the drainage situation in Lahaina especially in the Wainee Street area.
The safety of our Lahaina residents is of primary concern. As you may know the
County has contracted with Michael Munekiyo to do an EIS for the channel
drainage easement that would run from Lahainaluna past Puamana. At best
estimate, this project could not be completed within the next five years even if
federal funds are available. The proposed channel easement will eliminate most
of the flooding in Lahaina; however, engineers will tell you that the Wainee Street
area will need additional drainage. I believe that the State, Amfac, County, and
Bishop Estates, can no longer ignore the dumping of water on the Wainee Street
area. All of the above entities want to pretend that it is not their problem but
clearly the County cannot afford to continue to ignore the responsibility and
liability .. .(end of tape, side 2A). .. What can be done to resolve the flooding
issue? The answer is in the Lahaina master drain plan, which includes
Drainline F. Drainline F will be engineered to take care of the flooding issues in
the Wainee Street area. I ask the Budget Committee to direct the Public Works
Department to use the services of an engineer firm, engineering firm to prepare
plans, specifications, and estimates for Drainline F. Something must be done
immediately regarding the drainage from the special events pond to the ocean
before someone gets seriously hurt. I can't imagine the County appropriating
$950,000 enlargening the park behind the Aquatic Center and not doing anything
to take care of the drainage downstream. I'm all for an additional soccer fields;
however, fields can, can and will increase the flow of water into the area. We
request that the County appropriate $300,000 for the design of Drainline F and to
start the process of alleviating the flooding in the neighborhood. And PS, I'd also
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like to register my support of the crosswalk at Kamehameha the III School as a
concerned parent of two children that attend school there. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Michael. And, Members, you do have
Mr. Sullivan's I believe faxed written testimony to your offices. Next, we have
Patrick Sullivan.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Okay, I'm Patrick Sullivan, older brother of Michael Sullivan and
son of Robert Sullivan who is one of the prime suspects of the Wainee Street
flooding. Anyway, good evening, Council Members. Thank you for making it a
quorum and also thank you, Michele Yoshimura, and your staff for being here.
First of all, I'd like to say that. .. on a personal note, in 1971, I was playing
basketball for Lahainaluna High School and Larry Cairnon(?) our Coach was
driving the bus back and I think I was--I think we may have had two day students
and the rest were boarders that were on the team. Anyway, the bus went
down ... Shaw Street and then down to Wainee Street and dropped me off and at
that time, there was a tremendous amount of water coming down. It was
probably 10:30 at night, and I got off the bus and I had about knee deep in water,
from there, I went into the house and we had about six inches of water in the
house. So, that was 1971 and then there was the flood of 1989 and then there
was the flood of 1997 and then there was the flood of 2002. So, that makes four
floods, which are supposedly 25-year to 100-year floods during a 3D-year
timeframe. That's an obvious concern. What could be a tragedy could have
been the Carden School at the Hongwanji Church. There was a number of kids
in school and if, one of the mothers turned to the left and somehow the car was
overturned, we could have had quite a tragedy not to mention the potential
liability to the County. So, from there I'd like to, to read you a little article,
Solution near to Wainee Flooding, Lahaina News October 25, 1989. A
consultant is expected to be hired by June 1990 to complete the design of a
project intended to, to reduce the flooding in the Wainee Street area. County
Highways Chief Fred Araki said. Araki said the State Legislature has provided
110,000 in its Budget for the Lahaina drainage improvements. Upon completion
of the design, a request will be made for the construction money for Maui County
Council. According to Araki, the cost of the project is currently estimated at
3.5 million. Councilmember Howard Kihune said the funding issue is a touchy
subject, that's a lot of money. Kihune said he would like to see some sort of
financial arrangement between the County and private developers.
MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: From that standpoint, the private developers are really across the
highway. They are the ones that are on the hill and there's four that I know of:
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Amfac, Bishop Estates, the State of Hawaii, and the County of MauL Now, the
County of Maui and Bishop Estates may be the only ones with money but those
are the ones that are going to be looked to if we have a tragedy on
Wainee Street. So, what I would like to recommend to the Council is to look at
Drainline F, which I also have ... a notice from the engineers that was put in the
paper on September 14, 1990 to design that drainline. And we need it to go from
the ...what's that center... it's the pond--I won't call it the Dengue pond--but
anyway, from the pond down to Front Street.
MS. ALUETA: Four minutes.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: So, anyway thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Patrick.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Hold on, Patrick.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Pat.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa has a question.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. You're, you're holding up some documentation
from a study, that's a September 14, 1990 study. Is, is that what that is? That's,
that's what I thought I heard you say.
MR. P. SULLIVAN:
Drainline F.

No, this was ... an ad, notice to engineers for the design of

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, what is the date of that study that you have?
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Well, it was an advertisement in the Maui News requesting bids for
Drainline F and it's September 14,1990.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
completed?

Okay.

To your knowledge was that study ever

MR. P. SULLIVAN: I actually tried to call Mr. Tanaka of Tanaka Engineers today and I
don't believe it was because I believe what happened was the, something went
sideways on the channel easement up above and so it wasn't, it wasn't pursued.
At least I believe that's the case.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. But you were told that money was allocated to
the study from the State and that after that it kind of just disappeared.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: It, it had to have been because you, the County Lloyd Lee is the
one who put this notice into the paper to request for bids for the design work of
Drainline F. Now, the letter that I had was from a Maui, Lahaina News in October
of '89 that said the Legislature or Fred Araki said there was 110,000 that came
from the Legislature that was available to go towards this design of Drainline F.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Yeah, I just needed a reference point because
if we're going to be looking for a specific project then I, I thank you for that.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Yeah, I'll provide this the Council after the hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Patrick. Thank you, Michael--that was Patrick Sullivan,
excuse me. Next, we have Maria Weber. Maria. And she will be followed by
Michael Times.
MS. WEBER: Good evening. Good evening, Mr. Chairman, and Council Members.
Thank you for coming. It's nice to see some of you that I saw last night. My
name is Maria Weber. I'm testifying as a private individual. I'm a retired nurse
and I also happen to be on the Board of the West Maui Taxpayers Association. I,
I have been advocating with Tyler Lee to get an acute care facility 7/24 here in
West MauL In this day and age, it's, it is absolutely imperative that we get this
kind of facility over here. We have great problems with the road when it closes.
We have a de facto population of about 46,000 people a day. You all are aware
of the problems over at Maui Memorial. They are not enough beds. There are
not enough beds for acute care or emergency services. And there is something
in the medical profession that we call the golden hour. It is the golden hour of
hope whether it be for a cardiac case or trauma. If a patient does not get help
within that golden hour, they're chances of dying go up about every three or four
minutes. Now, we all know that we have two ambulances here but they are not
always available. Sometimes our ambulances are over on the other side. And
what should happen let's say if one of you were over here and you had a heart
attack, you would have to wait for an ambulance to come probably from Kihei.
That's what? A half hour.. .40 minutes by the time the paramedics get here, put
you in the ambulance, and get you on your way that golden hour is gone. It does
not exist anymore. I've also been lobbying to, to the Legislature not only here on
Maui but also in Honolulu, first of all, to pass a resolution towards an acute care
facility. I would now like to thank and acknowledge publicly Mr. Bob Carroll and
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Mr. Mike Molina. You've answered our call for help. I would like to thank
Bob Carroll for the introduction of a resolution to this. And what we absolutely
need now is something called a CON, which is called a Certificate of Need.
Some of us went over to the hospital the other day and had about two and half
hour meeting with the people at the hospital and it was said and understood
that-MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MS. WEBER: --thank you--that we are not in competition with Maui Memorial. We'd
like to get the people here, stabilize them, and get them on their way. So, I, I
would like to thank all the Council Members including Jo Anne for listening to us
and helping us on this long journey. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Maria. Next, we have Michael, Michael Times and
following Michael this evening will be Gary Savage.
MR. TIMES: Good evening, Mr. Hokama, Jo Anne Johnson, Administration, I really
appreciate that--other, other members really appreciate your time and your
efforts. I really appreciate your acknowledgement and appropriations for the
skate park and all the kids that are here for MEO, for the Boys, Boys and Girls
Clubs, we really--and the Maui Drug Court. All those things are important to me.
Again, my name is Mike Times. I'm with, I'm Director, represent Youth Outreach
and it's a new organization--actually we're featured in this, in tomorrow's Lahaina
News. And we, we are here to work with at risk, at risk youths specifically in the
community and we, our organization is here to help them start their own
businesses, to help, have a place where they can come and do their homework,
do certain classes, arts and crafts, and sports projects and the like. As one
person who testified before me mentioned when they, when she was talking
about the Boys and Girls Club being the only safe place in, in Lahaina where
they can come that's true. And we want to have another place, we want to have
another place where they can come. Basically, a Boys and Girls Club deals with
the average age of 9 ... 9 to 14. My, my organization deals with kids 12 to 21.
And our, our whole goal is to inspire, to encourage, and to enable the youth.
Provide them with the resources they need to get from Point A to Point C. We act
as Point B helping them with the vocational resources that they need and also
our objective is to empower parents. Because a lot of parents are not, don't feel
they have a place or a place to go or, or they need, they have to have access to
information and services and we, we are here to provide that. I'm formally an
employee of, of the Youth Center. I had, I had the pleasure of working with
Jo Anne Johnson when we were there. I'm also presently an employee of Maui
Youth and Family Services as the Outreach Counselor for Lahaina. Also, I work
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at the Independent Living Program right off of Lahainaluna that helps kids
transition from where they are into being productive members of society. I've
been working with teenagers on Oahu for ten years and so I've had, I have a lot
of experience. And I know a lot of the kids that that are out there because I'm out
on the streets with them and they're very excited about this program and they
want to take leadership roles in this program. I'm here basically to, to let you
know we, we've acquired a space up at the Lahaina Business Park. That's
mauka of the Lahaina Cannery Mall. And it's a very large space and it's, it's very,
very good for, for what we intend to use it for-MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MR. TIMES: --which is having computers and, and other resources that that they need.
Actually, I'm here to just, just ask for 28 ... $28,800 per year just for our rents.
Everything else we can handle because we have great, everybody that we
approach about this organization is very happy to support it. Donations and, and,
and the like. So, we can, we can, we can provide everything but we want to be
able to provide these kids with, with quality help. Thank you so much for
listening. Have a great evening.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Michael. And, Michael, you do know
that the, you have the opportunity to apply for grants from the Department of
Housing and Human Concerns. The Council puts forth millions of dollars in this
grant fund pool for organizations such as yours to apply for. So, I would ask if
you need more information maybe you can contact Ms. Yoshimura or Alice Lee
the Director of the Department. Okay. Thank you. Mr. Savage.
MR. SAVAGE: Good evening. Excuse me, I'm kind of eager. I'm Gary Savage.
represent the West Maui Skate Park Association. I'd like all of you to come up
here now. Come on all you guys. Come line up right behind me here. If I'm
speaking for you, you're going to stand up here too. Come on. We have a
promise for a skate park and we would like to make sure we get the kind of skate
park we really need. It will cost at least a million dollars to build the kind park that
will go on into the future and be useable for generations to come. And we will
help design the park. We are ready to work with the Council on making sure that
we get the kind of park that will be successful. We also anticipate bringing in the
X-Games and professional sporting events to West Maui. We hope that you will
work with us in designing the park and making sure that it, it works out well for
everyone. We've seen parks in other areas get built on a small scale and within
a few years fall out of use and just become white elephants and we don't want to
see that happen here. The kids have been waiting for this for ten years. We can
date the project, you know, when it first started and it's just an ongoing thing that
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has never come about. So, I'm really encouraging you to put as much money as
you can into it and to stay in contact with us. At this point, we are promised a
piece of land at the end of Shaw Street and we would like to get a commitment to
that. We had an architect draw up plans. Floyd, has a copy of the plans. And I
think the only thing holding it up is your approval. If you can approve the, the
spot, we'll continue with our fundraiser and, you know, we anticipate raising at
least half the money, if you can meet us half way that would be great. Ballpark
figure is a million dollars that includes operating costs, lights, everything it will
take to get the park running. Anything else you guys want me to add to that?
?: ... (inaudible) . .. all night skate park?
MR. SAVAGE: Yeah, and, and their, their big question is when is this going to happen?
I get asked this constantly. When are we going to get the park.
?: There, like it doesn't matter you don't have to wear a helmet unless you want to.
MR. SAVAGE: Well, we're going to probably have to wear helmets but as far as it being
open for everyone to use that's a key issue that we would like to have it be
available as often as possible. And we have a lot of ideas how to make this
happen. We've been working with a lot of people with experience from the
mainland on this. Let me see what else did I want to say? Anybody have
anything else to add to that? Yeah, we're trying to, we're trying to keep so there
are no fees. This shoots down a lot of the parks, kids just can't afford it. What?

?: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. SAVAGE: Yeah, well we may have to have it gated but we're looking at-?: And skate at your own risk.
MR. SAVAGE: Right. And skate at your own risk. All the kids in this town that skate
have to do so by breaking the law.
MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MR. SAVAGE: Okay. At this time, there is no place except your own driveway. So, the
sooner we can get this going, the better it will be for everybody. And thank you
very much.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Savage. Mr. Savage.
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MR. SAVAGE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This Shaw Street location, who has ownership of that land currently?
MR. SAVAGE: I believe it's being transferred to the County at this time. And when I
spoke with Floyd about it I think the County has purchased it or it's in the process
of being purchased. I think it was Amfac land. I'm not positive though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll work with Ms. Johnson. Besides being the West Maui
Members, she's also in charge of the Parks Department. So, she will be working
with Mr. Miyazono and she can also put you in touch with our friends in Paia who
are ready to go under construction for their skate park and let you know what
they've been able to do getting monies from different foundations out there that
support this kind of activities.
MR. SAVAGE: Okay, we're, we're, we're ahead of you on that. We're, we're ready to
go with our fund raiser. We have a lot of things in place. We just need to get the
site approval so we can say here's our spot, you know, we have this much space
to use. We've measured it off. We're looking at 25,000 sq ft, which is
considerably larger than what they're doing in Paia. And we feel that putting in
the flagship park in West Maui for the state of Hawaii is a really good idea. We
have the most visitors here on this side. Bringing the X-Games here will be huge
for the local people here, you know, it will, it will bring a lot of revenue. You know
it's, it's a win-win thing for everybody especially the kids in the area. I know a lot
of kids that play soccer, and I know a lot of kids that skate and most of the kids
that play soccer, skate too. And there's, you know, there's places you can do
both but right now there's no way to skate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa, you have a question for Mr. Savage?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, Gary, I got a couple questions. It appears in
the Budget that we have about $100,000 that's, the Mayor has earmarked for
this, you're saying you need a million.
MR. SAVAGE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If you get $100,000 what are you going to be able to
do? I mean because you ...
MR. SAVAGE: Well, not much. We, you know, we, right now we're looking at raising
the money on our own and we're prepared to do that. The alternative plan, and
we've looked at a lot of alternatives, is to put in a partial park, which would be
maybe 10 percent of what the finished park would be. And it gives immediate
relief, you know, just a beginning portion of the park that can be skated and
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prepared and then add, you now, plan on adding the park as we get the money.
But looking at both ideas it's probably better if we can do it all at once and just
get one contractor in. And this cost and we've measured this against parks all
over the country is for a really big beautiful park. This is, and we have photos we
can show you. We have a lot of research we've done. The smaller parks tend to
be less successful. They don't attract the skaters. They don't get used as much
and we've seen that happen in Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, let me ask you a couple more questions-MR. SAVAGE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --'cause I was Park Chairman when I first got on the
Council-MR. SAVAGE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --and while I was Park Chairman, we put in the
funding and we actually got the skateboard park on the other side started. And
there were several organizations that came up to try and request skateboard
parks, some were constructed and have been abandoned. For the most part,
they haven't worked out very well.
MR. SAVAGE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Therefore there are a number reasons and that's what
I'm trying to understand what, what ... (inaudible) ...
MR. SAVAGE: One, one of the key reasons-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, let me ask the question. First of all, about how
members do you have that would use the park?
MR. SAVAGE: Well, at this point, you're looking at about maybe 1 percent. Now, we
don't have everybody as a member but we're representing all the kids that skate
on the island. And as far as this group right here--well, how many of you know at
least 20 other people that skate? I think this is, you know, this is, these are the
kids that sat through a two-hour meeting and are willing to come out. I think it's
not just the local kids that will use the park-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, let, let, let, let me ask you.
MR. SAVAGE: Yeah, sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
skateboard park?

Who is going to be the lead organization for this

MR. SAVAGE: Well, it would be the West Maui Skate Park Association.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. And you would be the one that would be
supervising and carrying the liability insurance and running the program.
MR. SAVAGE: We're working on several plans. There are lots of options. You know
we haven't come up with an absolute definite plan on how this can work but we
know that we will. You know we have a lot of confidence that we can see it
through.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, and for the property to be transferred, who
would the property be transferred to?
MR. SAVAGE: Well, we don't want to take ownership of the property. We want it to be
a County park and we want to figure out--and we don't know exactly how to do
this at this time but we want to figure out a way to protect the liability for the
County. And I know this is being done in other places. I don't know where--I
believe it's being done in, on Oahu that they're starting to work this way where,
you know, you skate at your own risk. So, we're hoping we can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, let me understand this correctly. You're looking
for a transfer of ownership of property but you want the County to have that
ownership.
MR. SAVAGE: Well, what we're looking for is a skate park and as far as who owns the
skate park, you know, we would like to provide the funds to build it but, you know,
we don't necessarily want to own it. We think it should be a public park.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, again-MR. SAVAGE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --I'm just trying to make sense of what you're asking.
MR. SAVAGE: To get an idea, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: To really understand what the-MR. SAVAGE: The, the reason is costs so much is we would like to have the
contractors that build these parks professionally be hired to do it. It's trickier than
you think building a good skate park. You can build one and it can be lumpy and
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poorly designed and the kids won't use it. If it's built professionally, it's the best
thing that can happen. You have kids come, kids will be coming from all over the
island to use it.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, you're looking at something that's even more
elaborate than Central Maui's-MR. SAVAGE: Oh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --at Keopuolani Park.
MR. SAVAGE: Yeah. Yeah. Yeah, definitely. And we'll, we have pictures--I didn't
bring 'em tonight but we'll submit pictures to the Council. You can see the kind
of parks that are similar to what we're looking for that are, they're being built in
small communities all over the mainland-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And if this-MR. SAVAGE: --and being run successfully by, you know, public entities.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. But at this point, your organization is it a formal
organization or is it something that you're trying to put together?
MR. SAVAGE: Well, we're a formal organization. We're about ready to get our
nonprofit status and begin raising money. So, it's, you know, as soon as we can
coordinate with you that we have a place to do it, we can begin. We're sort of
waiting to see if we have that spot. You know that's our main concern is having
the location ... and the promise that the County will work with us.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. SAVAGE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, we have Mr. Dyke Kondo. Mr. Kondo.
MR. KONDO: I'm the last?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you got about three people after you.
MR. KONDO: I asked you if I was the last person to testify.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you not. We get, we have two, three more people after you.
MR. KONDO: Would they like to testify before me?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You can testify now, Mr. Kondo.
MR. KONDO: Okay. The reason I say that to you because I have a lot, plenty to tell
you. First of all, I appeal to the tax ... Appeals Board on our exemption on
August 23. I gave them all the things that I had and they ... they finally agreed
but I would like to read to you what the letter that they sent me, back to me.
Subject, Property Tax Board of Review .. .(inaudible) . .. Case No. 4018. Thank
you for the information you provided to the Real Property Tax Board of Review
at. . .(inaudible) . .. on August 23 to Oahu. In the Board's discussions following
the main portion of the meeting, we researched Maui County Code 3.48.450 and
G.48.465 and agree that when the homeowner's exemption was increased from
40,000 to 50,000 in 1995 for ... (inaudible) . .. Maui County Code 3.48.450. It
revealed to have been appropriate to also increase the exemption in the MC,
Maui County Code 3.48.465 from 80,000 to 90,000 for the 60, 70 age group and
from 100,000 to 110,000 for 70 and older group. In our final report at the end of
this session, we will be recommending to the Mayor and the County Council that
they look, that they look into this matter. At this point, we can only say thank you
for bringing this to our attention. Until Maui County Code G.48.465 is revised,
both the County of Maui Real Property Tax Division and the Real Property Tax
Board of Review are unable to grant the additional exemption. The other only
Councilman who should know, have known about this County Code is Nishiki
and Kawano because they were, they were County Councilman when the
exemption, the last time the exemptions were changed in 1990. Both of them
were Council Members, most of you all new, you don't know. But you have in the
County,
County
ordinance
the
increase
of
50,000
for
all
home ... (inaudible) . .. property-CHAIR HOKAMA: Take your time.
MR. KONDO: ... (inaudible) . .. additional $10,000 for homeowners real property taxes.
You have that in, in, in the County-CHAIR HOKAMA: County Code.
MR. KONDO: But since August, this is date August '78, from that time 'til today, I got no
word from the Administration or the County Council.
MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
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MR. KONDO: They, they ... the Property Tax tell me that the ... (inaudible) . .. that my
exemptions will still remain the same as of 1990. It's, it's, already half a year
gone by and I wait long time and I pay 15, $15 for fee. And the two letters they
sent me cost, cost them $7.86. Where the, where the rest of my $15 went to?
Why the, why the County Council make so high, make the fee so high? We, our,
people like us from the public, you know, like .. .(inaudible) . .. we can pay our
medical bills. This year, we are paying $107. While the County and the State
workers and their... (inaudible) . .. us those prices, they'll get the full coverage.
MS. ALUETA: Four minutes.
MR. KONDO: They don't pay one penny with me and I know that. We are, you know,
there are times I, since I. .. Iittle bit of, you know .. .(inaudible) . .. mathematics, I
like to figure things out and I do, I can figure things out. And now, since 1981 I
have been telling County Council a lot of things and embarrassing enough for
they digging everything up what they .. .(inaudible) . . .for the, for the laws.
According to our tax guy, some of the taxes have to be used only for the running
of the County government.
It's not supposed to be used for amenities.
Amenities, amenities is supposed to be funded through bonds. But like the, like
the State and even the Federal Government, they have a trick of shifting funds,
one fund to the other and then when they fund, when .. .(inaudible) . .. not
supposed to be budget they say we use these from our General Fund. That's
kind to late for us but that is all the, all the politicians play that. And then I have a
word for Councilman Molina and Councilman Arakawa.
MS. ALUETA: Six minutes.
MR. KONDO: Councilman Molina, during the last budget you say not too many people
turnout to protest on this property tax rate. The County employees, and State
employees, and the retirees, anybody who is receiving pension fund or income
from the government, cannot participate in public hearing against taxes or fees.
No. They cannot. They have ... (inaudible) . .. They trying to live off. They have
to. And for Councilman Arakawa, you ... on this appointment system. You know,
you were right, you know, most of the time but one ... (inaudible) . .. that you use
is wrong. You said you don't get any... (inaudible) . . .from the Administration,
they appoint somebody from in Kahului. That is wrong. Under the County
Charter, the Council Members cannot dictate or tell the Administration in any
manner, any manner, any way who they should appoint to the boards or
commission. The appointment is only for the Mayor's Administration. Council
did not do anything about it. That where you, you made mistake.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Kondo, any other thing you want to share within the
Budget for, that's being proposed?
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MR. KONDO: Last year, last year, you know, the .. .(inaudible) . .. that our property tax
assessment went up ten, ten-point and two-third percent. In other words, this
year my assessments is, went up to 32 percent. In two years ... you can figure
that out, it's ... (inaudible) . .. percent. One person from, from, from, the Finance
Director say this property tax, you know, during, since Apana became Mayor
went up 60 percent. Well, I have not, you know .. .(inaudible) . . .last year so I
don't know but. .. the, the, like I said before the 2.1 percent is manini. You folks
are cheating the people especially the senior citizens. Kauai now, the Mayor
proposed 15, 15 percent cut across the board on residential property taxes. How
come Big Island they don't(?) have a problem, they don't want to raise their taxes
but they cannot cut the taxes because they need the money. One Council--the
Mayor, the Mayor said maybe we have to streamline, you know, cut some
positions out. One Council Member said no, we cut the salary from all the
County employees, just a little bit across the board and then maybe we can
finance it. But Maui is different, Maui just said go ahead and raise the taxes.
You folks know even if... somebody really going work or what, I don't know. But
to me sometimes I call you folks stupid and I think I'm right. Okay. That's all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Kondo, and we appreciate your
comments and your opinion. Thank you for being here. Next, we have
Helen Randall. Helen, are you still here? Thank you for being patient, Helen.
MR. KONDO: Oh, wait, just a moment now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, Mister, Mr. Kondo, you ... it's, it's, it's Ms. Randall's turn.
MR. KONDO: Just let. .. (inaudible) . .. Can I expect any reply from you County Council
on that $10,000 exemption?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You wrote us a letter and we will-MR. KONDO: I wrote a letter more than six months-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we will respond. You wrote a letter, if you've written a letter to us,
we'll check on it to respond to you.
MR. KONDO: All you have to do is remove that glitch. Revise, revise the County Code
so that the, the .. .(inaudible) . .. can be applied to the senior citizens.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Kondo. Okay. Ms. Randall, your
comments please.
MS. RANDALL: I just want to add my two cents with on behalf of the West Maui Skate
Park Association. I'm just a skateboard mom and I want to just pOint out that we
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don't want to be nearsighted. We want to look to the future here. It's not just a
matter of getting these annoying adolescents off the street. They aren't a very,
you know, woman fuzzy population. They, they aren't as all-American as a
soccer kids but they are the future of Maui and skateboarding isn't just a fad.
Skateboarding is an Olympic sport. Skateboarding is the future. If we short, if
we are shortsighted on this, we're really shooting ourselves in the foot because
there are certain destinations in the world that are known for sports. My kids go
to Whistler(?) every Christmas. They just go there just to snowboard. And
there's places like Angelfire(?) in, in New Mexico, which are known just for their
snowboarding ramps. This, this type of thing I think is very important to look for
the future. When you consider that we have a potential to have a really
professional park with sponsored events, there's big money in this if we look at it
and we do it right. It's, I think, well when you look our real property taxes and our
transient accommodation taxes from this side of the island, we're putting in more
than our fair share. And we really do need about half a million dollars to do this
right and this, this skateboarding association can raise the other half. It's not just
for local kids. We really want to look at this as a potential. I work for a big resort.
We are slammed with, with people from the mainland. This is Spring Break
week. There are a gazillion kids here right now. This is, this is Maui. We are the
best island in the world and this side of the island is the best part as far as I'm
concerned. So, I just wanted to just make my point here that we have some very
motivated kids here. This was a boring meeting and these kids were sitting
here--and I mean they weren't too bad. Let's face it. You know there was a
couple of guys there that were getting pretty antsy but we want to show them that
they can participate one on one in government and make something happen.
This is a very good experience for these kids. It's very reinforcing to, to show
them that that, that we can back them up. And, you know, I don't really have a
position other than it's critical that we spend those dollars wisely. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Randall, for that. Okay. Next, we have Hans.
Hans, your turn, Hans Michel. I know you did this on purpose, Hans.
MR. MICHEL: Councilmen, Councilwoman, thank you for coming. I had to wait for a
little while longer. First, I want to say couple months ago we had a meeting with
the Mayor. He was sitting big and nice and smiling and he promised about all the
skateboarders, we're going to make you a skateboard facility. That was the
promise of the Mayor. I don't know what happened. If it falls in the water or if it
was a bullshit. I don't know. I have no idea what it was about. But that is what
he promised and I like to back up the, the--what do you call that--the
skateboarders. It's not my problem that's not the meeting I came for but since it
was such a big issue, please do something about it. If you promise something,
keep the promise. If you cannot keep the promise, bailout because we have
enough. I'm a resident of West Maui for 40 years and I have hear them all, I see
them all and if I had my way I hang 'em all. Excuse me, don't me wrong. You're
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my friend over there, so lucky. No problem. You can help when we, when we
had the flood. He can take picture. And you saw up Lahainaluna the problem by
Shaw Street over there and by Yamada house at that time. This is the lowest
spot on the whole highway section. And when they made the highway, they
made a dam, and after that when the water comes high, he goes underneath the
culvert over the road he goes to town. But it's not problem I don't live that side
because you have to think when you buy land but that's not my problem why I'm
here. My problem is the Lahainaluna traffic relief. All Apana says we'll do two
by-pass, I mean two relief, one on Shaw, one over by Safeway industrial area
into Ikena, Lahainaluna. Now, I hear they don't have any interest for the moment
and they say they can wait another couple more, more years. How many more
bullshit we have to take from you guys? I mean, let's be honest. Joe, was
talking about some taxes got paid here in West MauL I can see that. I'm retired.
Lucky for that, you know, so, he going to rip you off this year but the
is
please do something. We need it. Maybe you haven't seen in the morning
Lahainaluna crossing from Chevron to Shell Service Station, the traffic backs up
all the way 'til the next streetlight towards Kaanapali way. And you mean we
have a few flunkies from the State or from the County, I don't know where they
come, they put a little rubber gasket over the road and they like see how many
cars is passing and all this and that and then they do a whole heap of other study
again. And again, I don't see the plow in the field for the relief. So, can you
Council please help? I mean you guys have together, you know. Let's honest to
goodness to me, you all nice people I got nothing against you. I don't know how
much power you have but if a Mayor tells you, we'll do something and you told
the skateboarder we do something. He tells all the guys we go do something
and then they sit back because you guys have the, I mean the Mayor has a pay
raise. I saw that in the paper.
MS. ALUETA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHEL: Never mind. After that every thing when cool off. You understand. But
we pay the money. My wife is a grandma shuttle kids to school and because of
the intermediate and the other ones they have different times, you know, it's hard
time to bring kids to school. I would advise everybody do not take your kids to
school. Let them go by bus and bus 'em to the school then you can see
what. . .(inaudible) . .. you go pay. You know what I mean. Let's be practical and
let that Lahainaluna traffic relief on the road. Put it in the newspaper. Publicize it
50 we can tell you the bullshit never came, you know, 50 we have black and
white. We like to see it. He does not put it on paper. So, please do something
50 we can get 'em, otherwise, we have vote for Arakawa for, as a Republican,
you know. Yeah, you know, what I mean. Nobody else, to me it makes no
difference who runs, it makes a difference who get the job done. Okay. That's
all. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Hans. Okay, Hans, thank you very much for your closing
comments. Okay, I'm going to call one more time. Tyler Lee.
MR. PLUTA: ... (inaudible) . .. can I speak for him?
CHAIR HOKAMA: For Tyler.
MR. PLUTA: For Tyler.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You don't look like Tyler to me.
MR. PLUTA: .. .(inaudible) . .. he's from my committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, you can talk too for Tyler.
MR. PLUTA: Great. Okay. Thank you. Well, I'm speaking for, Tyler Lee is on our
Treasurer of the West Maui Taxpayers. He, he wanted me point out for him
that--he also works in, he's an Actuary, the numbers guy. So, he not only knows
numbers, to be an Actuary you've really got to know numbers to get that
designation. And that the taxes as the way they're proposed now, of course,
there's no tax increase but there really is a tax increase because the
assessments have gone up. So, the actual take in tax dollars is 16 percent more
without raising the rate in the taxes. There still is 16 percent more. And then this
County spending he says is another $56 million more. So, you know, we've
spent $56 million more supposedly then ... obviously--I better, I better not
comment anymore about his numbers until he--'cause he's the Actuary let him do
it. He's going to e-mail you that. So, you're going to get Tyler Lee's testimony,
read it 'cause he, the numbers are good. But I just want to, one, one further
thing, I was part of the Mayor's economic summit and some of you were there
probably the first time he, he had this economic summit for all of Maui County. In
that, that economic summit, the number one issue that everybody from all
aspects of Maui County, I mean from Haiku and from .. .(end of tape, side
28) ...thing was Mokoloua [sic] Moku'ula, excuse me, Moku'ula. That was the
number one thing that everybody came up with the most important thing. And
somehow Moku'ula has gotten a shopping center permit, you know, an area
bordering that property which is beyond my comprehension. Whatever went
wrong there, something needs to be fixed so that that kind of thing can't happen.
Why the County Council doesn't jump right behind what their number one, I
mean, one, number one issue that everybody felt with the eco .. .for the
economic of Maui County was Moku'ula. What's been done by it? You know
don't let shopping centers get built on it. Let's develop it, protect it. You got a
Countywide 100 percent support of it as a economic reality of--that's what they,
they felt was the most important thing. So, it seems like this ... there needs to be
some attention put there. I don't see where that attention is in the Budget.
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Whatever is necessary to condemn the land around that area to develop it and
to, and to do what was the, the unanimous choice of the economic summit, I
think should be looked at. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Joe .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members of West Maui thank you for those that, of you that
stayed 'til the very end. The Committee appreciates it. And again, you will have
additional opportunities to send in further testimony prior to decision making,
which is being scheduled for approximately April 20 th when we'll start the final
deliberations. Okay, West Maui, thank you very much for being here this evening
and we shall adjourn this meeting .... (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: OK, PK, CT)
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:42 p.m.

APPROVED:

~~
Budget and Finance Committee

Transcribed by: Cathy L. Simmons

bf:min:020327 -2a
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Vicki Betts, Manager, Kahana Village Resort
Jon Kinimaka, Volunteer, Friends of the Maui Drug Court
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ITEM NO.9:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2003 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUl (C.C. No. 01-244, C.C. No. 02-8, C.C. No. 02-53; Bill No. __ (2001);
and Misc.)

MS. FUJIWARA: Thank you. Thank you. Before I start, our seniors are so involved
and so busy that before I start I would ask, like to ask the Chair for permission to
excuse our seniors at approximately 6:50 p.m. because we have another function
to attend at 7 o'clock. And incidentally, we had attended another function early
this morning in Kahului also. Thank you all for acquiring the land for our
West Maui Senior Center. We come to you this evening to ask you to approve
the money for construction of this center. I assure you this money will be well
spent. You baby boomers on the Council may some day also use this center.
The Center will provide a central location for all of our senior activities and will
afford us the opportunity to participate in the many cultural, recreational, and
educational programs like those offered at Kaunoa. Thank you also for your
ongoing support of MEO and it's many services such as Head Start, Youth Bank,
Micro-Enterprise Program, the work with the immigrant population and, of course,
transportation for our seniors and for people with disabilities. As you know,
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transportation is of utmost important, importance to us as most of our seniors no
longer drive and we would like to keep as independent as possible and not have
to rely on family and friends for transportation to go shopping, to visit the doctor,
and to attend meetings. So, we urge you to please fund the replacement of older
buses. We ask you to continue to support MEO in their upcoming budget
deliberations.
Your support of a 5 percent cost of living increase for
Transportation and the Head Start personnel, would I'm sure be appreciated.
Support also the Boys and Girls Clubs and the Youth Bank Programs. These
young people are our future and the Youth Bank and the Boys and Girls Club
work hard on behalf of at risk youngsters by providing life skills training, character
development, and entrepreneurial skills. Our seniors continue to be healthy in
both mind and body because of the involvement in programs offered by MEO,
Kaunoa, Hale Mahaolu, and the Office on Aging. So, please help us stay healthy
by funding programs that affect our senior population. There is much need for
an ... acute care center in West Maui. With frequent road closures, over
crowding at Maui Memorial Hospital, it is almost imperative that we have
something on this side of the island. Thank you.
MR. NAGAMINE: Good evening, Chair... Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Council
and the staff. My name is Richard Nagamine and I am one of the many seniors
from the west side senior citizen group. First of all, I would like to thank the
Budget Committee Members for, for approving the additional funds for our Senior
Citizen's Center. The next step now is to get the approval of the full Council. I'm
quite sure that our Council Members will vote for approval of this funds. I come
here tonight to thank you all for your support in our west side senior citizen site. I
also ask that you continue to support our project and hope to see ... the Senior
Citizen Center completed soon. I would also like to note that with appreciation,
the use of the MEO bus for many of us seniors who prefer not to drive as it
provides a valuable service to us. My family and I as well as many of the other
west side seniors look to continue to support you as you continue to support us.
Again, I say thank you.
MS. YAMAFUJI: Members of the Council, good evening. My name is Anita Yamafuji
and I'm one of those active members of Lahaina Honolua Senior Citizen Club. I
want to thank you for your support of MEO and its services. MEO provides
services not only for seniors but for people of all ages in programs such as Head
Start, Youth Bank, Micro-Enterprise, and immigrant population. Please help
MEO with funds to replace the old buses so we seniors can be assured that we'll
get to our destination and back without bus breaking down. Please continue,
continue also to support the senior program at Kaunoa; programs that we'll also
have when West Maui Senior Citizen [sic] is built. Thank you for helping us to
get the land for our center. Now, we need our building. Please provide funding
for our building. Thank you.
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MR. PAll: Chairman Hokama, and Members of the Council, aloha. My name is
Solomon Pali and I am a member of Lahaina Honolua Seniors Club. Thank you
for your past support of all the senior programs. Before I joined the Lahaina
Honolua Senior Citizens Club, my participation outside activity was very limited
because of my disability to travel far on my motorized vehicle. Thanks to MEO
Transportation, I am able to attend, participate in all the meetings, activities,
excursions offered by our Club and believe me I have taken advantage. I sign up
for all of' em. The MEO bus drivers are always courteous and go out of their way
to take care of us and help us with disabilities. Don't you think it's about time
they got a raise? I don't know. I would. We seniors need a center in Lahaina
where we can go talk, to talk story or kanikapila. Now that we have the land, we
need a building. So, please approve the money need for that one today. Please
continue to support all senior programs so we can live as independent and as
possible for as long as we live. Thank you.
MS. KAAIHUE: Yes, we need facilities for the seniors. The Adults Day Care Center is
in a rundown old building at Malu Ulu 0 Lele Park. I know because I go there at
least once a week. Has anyone of you visited at all? How about the furniture, it
must be in the 40s or 50s. We are here tonight not to intimidate you,
Council Members, but to show that we care and we need more money in the
Budget for West Maui. It took us six years to finally get a senior center. In that
time, 16 of our active members has passed on. We need more urgent medical
facilities, playground equipment, more open parks for practices and games, also
an alternative, an alternative roadway to Kahului. We have businesses here in
Lahaina that helps our community by sponsoring teams, schools, scholarships,
et cetera, and that is what we do. Your business is to take care of the bigger
things as a whole and that is why we are here to ask you for your help in the
2003 Budget for West Maui. Mahalo.
MR. FUJIWARA: I'm George Fujiwara. I'm one of the Lahaina Honolua Senior Citizen
and, first of all, I'd like to thank you for the Senior Center that you have help us
get and we sure like to get the building up fast because you know why, we all
seniors and we anticipating that, you know, two years too long, you know, we got
to wait. So, we got to hurry up because last year 15 members, you know,
disappeared. So, we like, you know, get this, get the money and get the building
going so we all can appreciate what we work hard for you know. And so, please
get this building going. And another, and another thing to is thank you with the,
helping the MEO getting new buses and so we can go here and there instead of
staying home. So, and another thing to is I really would, I was looking at the
Shaw Street, yeah, and it's so bad. I walked there this morning and, you know,
the Kam III School kids go to the ballpark using that that road. If you, if you can,
folks can do something about. .. why, you know, clear up the place a little, you
know, get all the, you know, the monkey pod trees, all the branches fall and stuff,
the kids walk over there, you know, they might stumble and, you know, the road
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is so narrow our walk is so dangerous. The cars, you know, up and down, some
go, they go, they go fast, you know, and they don't care, you know. So, if you
folks can wi. .. make some County or somebody go over there and clean that
every morning. Check the path where the kids walk, you know, Monday through
Friday so they have a walkway, you know, instead of jumping over the branches
or stuff like that, yeah. And I'm sure they try to do their best to keep that path
clean. So, try and look into that situation because I walked there this morning it's
really bad. Another thing is too, on Shaw and Front Street going toward
Puamana, there's two cars parked on both sides, huh, in front that
Lahaina Shores. And, you know, each ... 1 go there everyday and, you know, I
have to, I live there so there's like four cars on that narrow street, yeah, it's so,
it's so difficult to drive over there and dangerous. And people walk over there too
and, you know, they walking, you can't help them they got to walk on the road,
huh, just because they park bumper to bumper on the one side.And ... coming
out from where I live, where May and I live, where the mango stand is the South,
South, you know, Puamana side, there's the first lane that come out and people
park on both sides. And we coming out of the driveway, we cannot see both
sides because they put the van close by and, you know, we got to come straight
out and make a right turn or left, you know, so it's very difficult. And we need
some no parking sign over there or something so we can come out of that place.
Everyday is a hassle because the kids, you know, they go surfing and stuff they
speed up on that Front Street. So, anyway, thank you very much and thank you
for the hard work you folks are doing we appreciate it very much.
MS. NAKATA: Chairman Hokama, and Members of the Council, good evening. My
name is Haruko Nakata. I represent the MEO ... MEO budget--not budget but
board and Honolua Lahaina Senior Citizen. I want to thank all you people for
getting the new buses last week and all the buses that you folks support us and,
and thank you for the new building that we going to have and we'd like to have
the building fast because we old. We don't, we don't know whether we'll see it or
not. .. and four years, three years is, that's too long for us. We'll be past 90 by
the time when you get finished and we'll be dead. So, anyway, I want to thank
the Council for all the help they did for the seniors ... pertaining to buses, buses
and everything and we really enjoying the MEO ... plans.
MR. MATHIAS: Good evening. Good evening, Members of the Council. I'm
Edward Mathias one of the senior citizens. I'm sure most you are familiar with,
with a relay race where four people with a baton. The object of this relay race is
to make sure the baton gets to the finish line. Well, when we first talked about
getting a senior citizen building and we were told the first thing we need to do is
get a property and we did that. That was the first guy carrying the baton. We did
that first hurdle. Then they suggested to us that we come up with some kind of
sketch or drawing, give us an idea of what you would like to. We did that. We
came up with a sketch and with that this is the result of our senior... this is, that's
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what we got. But anyway, and then the third was the architecture and then this is
what I just showed you. They met with us. They brought the drawing and we fell
in love with what they did. They were very sure that it's going to go. So, here we
are the fourth man in the relay team and that has to do with crossing the finish
line. So, I'm going to give this to these people here, West Maui Senior Center,
this baton and we hope that on the financial part of it that it will come through.
Thank you.
MS. McKELVEY: I almost came up here out of turn but it gave me the opportunity to sit
on Keoki Freeland's knee. My name is Joan McKelvey and I'm President of the
Lahaina Town Action Committee. Mr. Hokama, Jo Anne, and Administration, I
would like to say that we or I and we, strongly support the demand or the, the,
the request, I beg your pardon, of the Economic Development Budget and the
Maui Visitor Bureau, Visitors Bureau Budget. We at Lahaina Town Action
Committee are very dependent on a little, very, very little portion of that budget
and it's vital to West Maui in general, Lahaina in particular, for the Lahaina Town
Action Committee to continue to do what we're doing in town of Lahaina. We
also recommend strongly that the skateboard park be enacted. It's very, very
necessary really at this point. The raised crosswalk in front of Kamehameha the
III School is a necessity. There isn't even a sign there that says slow school
crossing, which is unbelievable. But. .. the, the other thing that I want to strongly,
strongly recommend is that something be done and done fast to provide lighting
under the banyan tree. The banyan tree is a focal point of Lahaina town. At
night, it is pitch black. It's a haven for drug users and drug dealers. There are
fights. Nobody will walk there and it's a detriment to the businesses in the area
and if you look you'll see them going out of business up and down because of
the, the, the fact that there is no light under the tree. Please let us get that done
and done immediately. Mahalo.
MS. LENNON:
... Chairman Hokama, Councilman, Councilwoman Johnson, and
members of Administration. I'm Rebecca Becky Lennon. I'm here representing
both the Pioneer Inn of which my husband is manager and as a new board
member of the Lahaina Town Action Committee. And one of our concerns is the
fact that Lahaina has once again become an unsafe town at night because of the
drugs and a big part of that is the lack of lighting. So, if we light the banyan tree.
If we light the streets leading up to Front Street. There are lights along
Front Street but if you go down any of the side streets you go into pitch black.
So, those, both of those things would go a long way to solve part of the drug
problem that we're facing. The other thing is we desperately need additional
Police Officers, and I don't know if it's just a funding issue but we really do need
the officers in our town. Thank you.
MR. MINICOLA: Thank you, Council Members. You did pronounce it right. It's
Minicola like small coke. I'm the General Manager with the Ohana Maui Islander
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Hotel and I want to say that we're happy to be doing business here in Lahaina
and in Maui and we're happy to give you our TAT tax dollars and I hope to give
you more. I'm going to be on the road promoting Maui as well as Lahaina over
the next couple of months. Since 9/11, our visitor count has dropped significantly
and the winter season was not bad but still behind previous years. April and May
looks very dismal and I'm sure a lot of you folks understand that on the Council
as well. And I am trying to send a message that with the TAT dollars that we
give--the Lahaina town itself is the number one tourist attraction in Maui, more
people visit Lahaina than any other place in MauL Now, with the dwindling
amount of visitors coming to Lahaina, a lot of it could be contributed to the
banyan tree, the lack of Police Officers, and maybe even the condition of a lot of
the buildings and infrastructure. I'm suggesting that with the dollars that we
generate in the TAT taxes that, you help invest some of that money back in West
Maui where it comes from so I can continue to bring in more dollars for the Maui
County. And as I promote tourism for all of us here, it's the future for our young
generation. There are a lot of high schools that are going to be graduating very
soon and with the dwindling amount of businesses in Lahaina town, I'm afraid to
say to that we do not have any job openings. If the visitors return it would be a
different story. So, I think it's in all of best interest to see what we could do to
promote and take care of a very fragile business. Thank you very much.
MS. MORRISON: Good evening. I'm Theo Morrison, Executive Director of Lahaina
Town Action Committee. Thank you very much for coming here tonight. We'd
like to support the, a revision of the Historic--or update I should say--of the
Historic District ordinances. Again, as Mic just said the, the buildings, the look,
the whole ambiance of Lahaina, the historic ambiance is one reason that people
do come to Lahaina and we need to update those ordinances so that they, they'll
be more timely. We also support the MVB allocation and the budget for the
Economic Development. We support the skateboard park for the Lahaina kids.
We've noticed as, you know, over the years the number of, of kids riding on the
sidewalks. It's a very unsafe situation and it's, it's a great sport for them so we
definitely recommend it. I know they support a skateboard park. It's just come to
our attention that Kamehameha the III School is lacking in, in signs saying
school, school zone and they're also requesting raised sidewalks. And this is a
school that years ago was just in a small town and now this is a bustling
commercial center. The cruise ship industry has increased tremendously in
Lahaina. The number of buses and cars going by the school is huge. And the
kids, of course, as you know have to cross the, the street, Front Street, to get to
the playground. So, there's a tremendous amounts of kids crossing the street
everyday without adequate safety protections in place. So, we strongly support
that because this is just one little school in the midst of a real town. We also
strongly support the senior programs. We work very closely with the senior
center, with the senior citizens. They do all our boat day greetings, play music,
and dance for 150 boat day greetings a year. It's absolutely phenomenal. They
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add an incredible sense of, of small town to what we're doing and the, the visitors
onboard the ships really appreciate that. I also have to strongly support the
banyan tree lights and like you said, that's in the Budget. It's long overdue. That
should be like the town square in Lahaina and instead it's like the drug square of
Lahaina. My office is right there in the banyan tree and I see it everyday all day
long. In the holiday season, we light the banyan tree with 3,500 Christmas lights
and when that happens and the whole area is lit it's, the whole ambiance under
the tree changes. Visitors come, they sit down and it's, it's just, it's almost like a
daytime thing. So, as far as, you know, it would be a small thing to increase, that
really make a big difference in town by getting that increased lighting under there.
And the other thing, we do support, definitely support more Police Officers but for
Lahaina, we'd like to support more Bicycle Police Officers. We start--years ago,
Lahaina Town Action Committee helped fund the uniforms and the, and the bikes
for the Officers. It was like in 19... Iong time ago, 1993 maybe and since that
time, we still have just the two or three Officers. And in a walking town, in a small
congested town like Lahaina, the Bicycle Officers are the most effective.
MR. FREELAND: Good evening, Councilman Hokama, Councilwoman Johnson, and
Michele.
The Lahaina--I'm Keoki Freeland from the Lahaina Restoration
Foundation. We fully support all the items that have been requested earlier
before me. I'd like to comment on just a few of 'em and maybe get some, give
you some added information on them. First of all, the condition of the Lahaina
banyan tree. I understand that as a result of the Council request to the
Administration contained in the Resolution No. 01-167 that a line item grant as
been established for the Fiscal Year 2003 Budget. I further understand that this
line item grant that, a County Arborist as part of the Department of Parks and
Recreation will be utilizing experts to determine the soil compaction, soil
nutrients, and soil moisture conditions. At the conclusion of this study, a master
plan for maintenance and care of the Lahaina banyan tree is to be developed. A
year ago, the banyan tree was on the verge of dying but because work put forth
by the Lahaina Restoration Foundation and some very good rains that we've had
in the past few months, the tree does look good at this time. However, it maybe
just a short term effect that we're seeing. So, we fully support this line item that
will extend the life of this vital landmark. Now, the banyan tree lights. Presently,
there are ten lamp poles under the banyan tree. If you were to walk under the
banyan tree at night, I'm sure you will agree that the present lighting is really
inadequate. I've been working with the, the Administration for a short-term fix
that will increase the lighting from 10 light fixtures to 24. This can be done
without major changes to the electrical switchgear that's presently available.
Again, because this area is a vital landmark utilized by many people both visitors
as well as local people, we support this line item as well. Another major item that
we'd like to support is to update the Historic District Guidelines that Theo
mentioned earlier. A major review criteria for renovation and new projects in the
Lahaina Historic District are found in the County Code and in the Style Book for
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Lahaina. These guidelines were written in the 1960s. At the Historic Hawaii
Foundation Conference held at Waiola Church last summer, it was apparent that
these guidelines are outdated. Our community and the County regulators are
working with outdated tools in an effort to maintain or restore the Lahaina's
historic character. Building technology has developed products that are now
available but were unknown in the 1960s. If the Council could fund to update
these design guidelines for the Lahaina Historic District and, and initiate a review
code, review the code sections, this will make it an understanding and easier for
the, the owners as well as the County enforcement officers of what is expected in
the Lahaina Historic District. If you want an estimate about how much this would
cost it's about $75,000 to do that. Finally, public toilets in Lahaina. It has been
said that the most commonly asked question in Lahaina is where are the public
toilets. Building a possible facility has been discussed many times. We have not
been able to get in agreement in a community on a location of this facility. There
are public toilets within the Old Lahaina Courthouse. These toilets can, were
installed primarily as users for the ... were installed primarily for the users of the
courthouse. When events take place under the banyan tree or when cruise ships
come to town, the line of people standing for these toilets are unbelievable. We
can increase the capacity of these toilets by upgrading them for the general
public. Funding a $50,000 grant will not only upgrade this facility but it will
reduce this problem considerably. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Keoki. Keoki, hold on. So, the public restrooms that you're
requesting the 50,000, you want it at the banyan location? Is that the ... it's-MR. FREELAND: Right in the Courthouse.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, in the Courthouse.
MR. FREELAND. Right. As I mentioned, the, the toilets there were made or were put
primarily for the users of the Courthouse but with the activities ... going on
underneath the banyan tree, and with the cruise ships coming into the town, and
this is the only public toilets available it's just vastly overwhelming for them. But
you can increase the capacity of them. It's not going to solve the problem
completely but you can increase the capacity of them by upgrading them and it
will, it will help tremendously.
MS. KAAWALOA: Aloha. Aloha and good evening, my name is Jolynn Kaawaloa. I'm
a supporter of the MEO Head Start. We'd just like to thank you for supporting
our preschool program and please continue to do so. And we'd like to thank you
for supporting MEO Transportation which helps our keikis get to preschool.
Thank you.
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MR. COLLINS: Aloha, Mr. Chairman Hokama, Chairwoman Johnson, and members of
the Administration. I'm here this evening as the Coordinator for the West Maui
Mountains Watershed Partnership to support our Mayor's Budget appropriation
of $100,000 for watershed protection and ask that the County Council increase
the amount by an additional 100 and, $150,000. The total of $250,000 would be
shared between the four watershed partnerships in Maui County. Please be
aware that the County monies will be well leveraged with matching federal funds
usually in a ratio of 60:40 or 75:25 with the larger amount coming from federal
sources. Regarding the relevance of our work, as you are aware there is
concern on Maui that the lao Aquifer may not be able to sustain the municipal
water demands that provide fresh water to our communities that extend from
Paia out to Wailea. Much has been reported about this situation and the focus is
usually on the rate of pumping of the aquifer and all the associated concerns
about development and the need to conserve our water. The other side of this
situation that is little written about is how we might increase the rate of recharge
to the aquifer. Well, this is the major purpose of watershed protection. Please
keep in mind that all of our drinking water that flows from the tap was once
originally rain and that, and the catchment system for storing that rain is our
watersheds. Our total water, rainfall totals on the West Maui Mountains is
usually abundant but most of the water falls onto our steep mountain slopes and
flows out to the sea as surface waters. The trick to increasing the amount of
rainfall that percolates into our aquifers is to slow down the movement of the
rainwater once it hits our steep mountain slopes. This is where watershed
protection effort pays off because it's by assuring that the mountain is well
vegetated with native plants, ferns, and mosses that we can slow down the
movement of the rainwater thereby increasing the rate of aquifer recharge. If the
vegetated slope has been recently disturbed by the rototilling actions of feral
pigs, the rain rushes down the slope rapidly in a muddy stream and little of this
water percolates into the aquifer. In short, watershed protection is a major factor
in the management of our, of our aquifers. So, in conclusion, I know that there's
some very difficult financial decisions that the Council faces this Budget session.
However, I know that you also understand that water is our most precious
commodity and questionably essential to human life and whose
prod ... protection efforts actually brings in significant amounts of federal and
private funding into Maui County. I thank you for the, for this opportunity. Aloha.
MR. BALL: Good evening, Council Members, and members of the Administration. I'm
Lindsay Ball, the Principal of King Kamehameha III Elementary School and I
want to thank Mr. Fujiwara who spoke earlier and talked about our situation with
the traffic and also Lahaina Town Action Committee. I'm here to ask for raised
crosswalks and I've left a map of the exact locations of where we're talking
about. Unfortunately, our children do have to go every day to, to the park across
the street and so we have to walk down Front Street to get to Malu Ulu 0 Lele
Park. And there is not any, there is no signage that identifies that there is a
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school or a school zone on Prison Street or coming from Puamana there's only
one sign and there's no signs coming from banyan street side, so it is quite
unsafe. You know we use that crossing by the park twice, going to the park and
returning and, unfortunately, we don't have the opportunity to have a crossing
guard there other than just a teacher. My personal experience with a, a raised
crosswalk that is by the Front Street apartments on Baby Beach, I think it's
effective. It caused me to slow down. I would like to be a little more proactive
before we have an accident with a student there. I've written a letter to
David Goode and his response was to give us some, some portable signage but I
don't think that really takes care of our, of our needs. We need something more
permanent by that. And also, the gentleman that spoke about the restrooms.
Yeah, we're in favor of that as well because wherever they get directed to our
campus to use our restrooms and we have to keep people off our campus during
the, during the school times. So, that is an issue. But I want to thank you for
your time and appreciate it. Thank you.
MR. BAYRON: Aloha, ladies and gentleman, we'll have the girls and boys of the Boys
club, Boys and Girls Club come up and totally out do me I'm sure with their
speeches. I just wanted to add, my name is Andrew Bayron. I'm a volunteer
Board Member of the Maui's Boys and Girls Club, Lahaina branch. And basically
I don't know all the facts and figures and numbers and Colin will cover that. But
we're asking basically for operational budget money. The Boys and Girls Club is
one of the most needed parts of our community such as the seniors addressed
when our keikis are, are a very special part of our community and it is such a
positive place for them. We would appreciate hopefully the same amount of
money, although, the last but obviously not to be hammered down in these tight
times. Just like to add if you guys do your part on, on the monies that I'll do my
part as a subcommittee member for fund raising to make sure that we, we siphon
out as much as we can from the private sector. Thank you. We'll have
the ... (inaudible) . ..
MISS M. BASH: My name is Melody Bash and I am 11 years old. I go to Lahaina
Intermediate School and, and also attend the Boys and Girls Club of West MauL
The reason I come to the Boys and Girls Club is because it is fun. At the Boys
and Girls Club, they have a lot of exciting things for us to do like watch movies,
Girl's Group, computer room, and the artwork, Lahaina Art Society. One other
activity at the Boys and Girls Club that isn't exactly too much fun is Power Hour.
Power Hour is the hour where staff helps us do our homework. One good thing
that comes out of it is that we get points for doing our work. At the end of month,
we get school supplies for prizes. We also have a program that me and my
friends like to do. What we do is go and take care of the seniors at the Adult Day
Care Center. We play games with them like Bingo, make cards with them, play
cards with them, help feed them, and one of the funny, one of the funniest times
there was when we went caroling and sang about ten different songs. We were
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so good that we were in the newspaper. Other things that we do at the Boys and
Girls Club is have tournaments and group games with lots of prizes. Without the
Boys and Girls Club, I would be at home with hardly anyone to play with while
getting addicted to the television and eating junk food. I--and getting big--I felt so
lucky recently when Alison told me that the, that the Boys and Girls Club
nominated me for the Kilohana Award which meant I was the best volunteer out
of 315 other members. I felt very happy and honored to be nominated. It was a
great experience for me to have in my youth and I think any other child would
have a great time. I was able to go to the Tropical Plantation Restaurant with
other members of the Boys and Girls Club along with other Kilohana Award
nominees. I had fun there because it was nice to be on stage with Mayor Apana
and other helpers and the food was good too. I felt very excited when I received
a cool(?) clock, a T-shirt, a bumper sticker, and a gold pin that I put on right away.
I also got an award signed by the Governor, Ben Cayetano. Alison copied it and
now it is hanging in the Boys and Girls Club of West MauL It was an honor to
speak in front of you guys tonight and thank you for listening. Please continue to
help us by keeping the Boys and Girls Club going so I can win more rewards.
Goodnight.
MASTER YEPEZ: Aloha and good evening, my name is Tony Yepez and I am ten
years old. I like the West Maui Boys and Girls Club because it is a kid's dream.
If the whole world knew about the Club, all the kids would go there. It is a great
place and I always wanted to be a part of a great club. Going to the Boys and
Girls Club makes me feel happy because I like to see happy faces from the staff
and other members. The number one reason I go to the Boys and Girls Club is
because Erin, Alison, and
treat me, me nice, the way they want to be
treated. Another reason is they also tutor me with my homework after school.
They have a program, they have a program called Power Hour where everyday
my homework gets done. My grades have improved from a "C" average to an
"A" average in two months. My favorite thing, things to do there is play pool, do
art, and cooking classes. The, the reason I keep coming back is to see the staff
and other members because they make me feel like family. We all play games
together and go on fieldtrips together. If they... if I did not go to the Boys and
Girls Club, I would not, I would die of boredom. I would just lay on the couch
watching television and doing nothing all day and I would not have any of my
new friends. I love the Boys and Girls Club and it is a big part of my life. Thank
you.
MISS H. BASH: Good evening, my name is Harmony Bash and I'm a member of the
Boys and Girls Club of West MauL I go to the Boys and Girls Club, Club because
it only cost $5 per year, which helps my mom. Also, we get to go on very fun
fieldtrips. We get to go to the senior center and do fun activities with the seniors.
One of my favorite things to do at the Boys and Girls Club is drama. We are
currently working on our second play. Last December, we did a play called How
- 12-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 27, 2002
Lahaina Civic Center Social Hall

the Grinch saved Christmas, and was able to have a dinner with our families and
friends and perform for them. I really enjoy drama because I have been able to
see how hard work pays off. In the last play, we practiced two times a week and
didn't always get along but we were able to work it out with the help from our staff
_ _ . Kept practicing and on the day of the performance we got our makeup
and hair done. This made me feel very excited and when it was over I felt happy
and good about myself but a little bummed out because the play was over, which
is why I'm so excited and ready to do our next play. The Boys and Girls Club is
like my other home. If I wasn't at the Boys and Girls Club, I would probably be at
home watching TV and eating junk food. I would be so bored without the Boys
and Girls Club. Some other things I do at the Boys and Girls Club that I wouldn't
normally do otherwise are fun games and tournaments, fishing trips, bowling, art,
and Girl's Group. The programs and staff at the Boys and Girls Club makes me
think about not doing drugs, not fighting with my peers, and our staff really wants
us to have a good career and do something good when we get older. Thank you
for letting me talk to you tonight and let me remind you to look out for upcoming
invitations to our next play, The Prince and the Letter P, scheduled for the
summertime. Thanks again for helping our Club and have a great night.
MISS CARDENAS: Aloha, my name is Alex Cardenas and I am a member of the Boys
and Girls Club. I like the Boys and Girls Club because I like the environment and
being around people my age. If it wasn't for the Boys and Girls Club, I'd probably
be at my house with my mom cleaning and we all know how fun that can be. The
Boys and Girls Club has a lot of tools for recreation. We have a community
service time so that we can do work around the, for the area around our Club.
Some of the activities that I like to do with the Club are Torch Club, Girl's Group,
and Smart Moves, which teaches us the skills to keep away from tobacco, drugs,
and other harmful things. One other activity I really enjoy is having a real artist
come from Lahaina Art Society to teach us many different types of art. So far, we
have learned to make pillows, baskets, and we are currently learning the skills to
do painting on canvas. One of the most important groups for me is Girl's Group.
In this group, I am able to share my thoughts and feelings in front of other
girls ... so, in front of girls only, so it's not embarrassing. I know the girls in this
group will support me and will, and will keep my thoughts within this room.
Within the last year, I've moved here from Washington and I have made many
adjustments. The Boys and Girls Club has, has helped me adjust by giving me a
new group of kids to hang out with and feel safe. When I first came to Maui, I
had no fun besides, besides my siblings. So, going to school, I was able to meet
new people and these people also went to the Boys and Girls Club. So, besides
all the programs I told you about, sometimes it's just fun to hang out with them at
the Club and for knowing that my parents know that I'm safe there. Not. .. not all
the fun happens at the Club. On one outing to the Upcountry Club, Alison
surprised us by taking us to Go-carts and all I could say over and over again was
thank you because I'd never been there. So, by, so being with the Boys and
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Girls Club we also get to travel to other clubs and places on the island. I still
hope that one day soon the Boys and Girls Club could take us off island to the
Water Park on Oahu. The Club gets hectic sometimes, what the staff calls kid
issues, but I know the Club is a safe and good place for kids. Mahalo for all your
help and have a great evening.
MS. WAY: Good evening. It's always hard to go after these guys. They did a great job.
I'm just going to add a little more about what kind of programs that we have at
our Club thanks to you. I am again the Director there and I just want to tell you
about the five different core areas that the Boys and Girls Club offers. The first
one is Arts and we're able to offer drama, arts and crafts, and cooking class. We
have another area called Health and Life Skills, which we do our Girl's Group and
a group called Smart Moves, which is our drug, alcohol prevention group. We
have Sports, Fitness, and Recreation, which includes tournaments. We have
daily sport activities, fieldtrips, and our group games. Education and Career
Development is one of the kids favorites with Power Hour. We have had French
class, typing class, computer lab time. We have a current Pen Pals Program and
creative writing. And the last one is our Character and Leadership Program,
which is, offers our Torch Club, which is our leadership group, community
service, and our new Adopt a Grandparent Program. This year, so far, we've
been offered, we have four different new groups that we're really excited
about--new programs. We're working on our second play in drama class and
we've, we start a new program this March, which is our Adopt a Grandparent
Program where the kids go to the Adult Day Tare [sic] Day Care Center on
Front Street and they go every other Wednesday. And starting April 2nd , we're
starting a new program called Kids in the Kitchen where we're seeking out local
chefs to have the kids go to their kitchens to learn different skills. This last year
has been very exciting and because our kids here have created new programs,
they made the new ones better and they get excited about the programs that we
do have already. I can sit here all day and tell you great stories but I'm just going
to try to quickly sum it up. And by, with talking with other staff, we've seen shy
members come out and, and get involved with our new groups and drama
classes. We've seen members get confident to have a banquet dinner that
served about 70 of their families and friends. We've had members here to talk to
you tonight. We hear daily success stories and problems that we help deal with.
We've been able to see recognition in the newspapers with our members and at
our Kilohana Award and, and we know that we're providing experiences that
maybe not will always be available to them. And we are all fortunate and very
lucky to be in the position that we are to share with the kids of West MauL I
would like to thank you for taking out time to listen to our large group and thanks
for your continuous support. Thank you.
MS. AQUINO: Hello, my name is Lisa Aquino and I'm a parent of the West Maui Boys
and Girls Club and I just wanted to let you know that it's the only safe place that
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children can go in the Lahaina area. One incident that I always think of was for
Halloween and I couldn't take my kids to Front Street because that's just to
stressful for me. So, Alison had a party and it was really safe and everyone had
fun. And they, the staff does wonderful work with my kids. They remember
everybody's name and they always remember one good thing about every child
that goes through there regardless of how they act or how many times they yell
or... they just have endless patience. And they've helped all of my children grow
and then develop. And taking very shy, timid, my daughter Carmen, and now
she's performing in the play and she wants to be an actress. And their computer
lab helps my children who don't have access to a computer at our house to type
their reports for their schoolwork and they just provide services that without their
help I wouldn't be able to do. So, I want to thank them and ask you to continue
to support them.
MR. HANLON: Council, Committee Chair Hokama, and Councilwoman Johnson.
Jo Anne. Okay, I could, I wasn't sure. I was going to call Michele and I wasn't
sure for ... so. First thing ... my name is Colin Hanlon. I'm the Executive Director
of the Boys and Girls Club. And I every year forget to do one thing I'm going to
do it first. Please help support MEO for the Youth Trans. They're a vital part of
what we do getting us from the schools to our buildings and from our buildings to
our homes. And, you know, I get so nero .. 1 get nervous. It's, it's a little bit easier
tonight that you don't have the full sitting. So, I just wanted to mention that and
then I wanted to mention the fact that you heard the kids and what it really comes
down to is every one of the kids here talked about the staff. And it's always going
to be the staff. They're not going to remember the building, they're not going to
remember the programs later on in life when they are, when they are successful.
They going to remember the fact that, you know,
had that that drama
class. Alison did this for me that day. Somebody sat me down and helped with
this. It's always going to be the people you're connecting with. We have
unbelievable staff in West MauL I am very proud to work with the staff in West
Maui because they do on a daily basis save lives. And I, I truly believe we, we
should be proud of the staff that we're putting together with our kids here in West
MauL Last year or this year that we're in right now, we, we, we're spending at
this site, you know, 163 and change. That is, we are very thankful and grateful
for that and that can, that that also contains a van that that we're going purchase
within the next month here for West Maui, which is in dire need. And I thank you
for that. I thank the County for that. Yes, exactly. Our, that van that we're in is
no longer useful and we, we definitely need that and I thank you. So, this year
we'll be coming in for about a 12 percent decrease from what we're spending this
year at West MauL We're going to coming in for 144,000--just. .. $145,000 here
in West MauL That is barebones. When, when I tell you that's barebones that is
our insurance across the board has increased 20 percent after, after, after
September. Okay, so, insurance rates have hiked 20 percent across the board.
In order to keep good staff, we've had to increase the benefit package and so, so
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basically if, if there is a cut in that there's no place, there's no fat in those budget
that we're coming to the County for. So, please across, you know, I'll be coming
up three more communities to testify and when I come to you I tell you those are,
those are barebones budgets that I'm showing you guys. So, please help out
with that. And, and, you know, I'm really grateful for everything you guys do. If
you guys, you know, we'll continue to do our part. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Colin, I wanted to let you know that the funding
according to Michele is remaining level for the Boys and Girls Club. So, as far as
the County's budgeted amount it will remain level. And I wanted to say just for all
the people that didn't have a chance to go to the play and did not have a chance
to really eat the ono food that you guys prepared. And I loved the chefs
costumes. It was absolutely tremendous. I highly recommend it. And the price
was especially good, it was free. But I'm really proud of you kids and I miss you
very much but I know you're in good hands with Alison and Colin and the rest.
And I'm really glad to see how articulate you are becoming. Thank you. Thank
you, kids.
MS. TILLMAN: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Claire Tillman and I'm
the Parent Community Networking Center Facilitator at King Kamehameha III
School. I'm here tonight as a concerned parent. I have a third grader and a
kindergartener at our school and there are few safety concerns I have with our
school but tonight I'll only address one, which is the safety of our children
crossing Front Street. Unfortunately, we have outgrown our campus therefore
our fourth and fifth graders must walk up Front Street and cross the street
everyday in order to have recess and they have their PE class. As you know, our
school is located on a busy, on busy Front Street, so not only do they have to
deal with the normal traffic, which is considerable, but also tourist traffic that is
totally unaware that there is a school in the area. Our school has no signage, no
markings, no lights to alert drivers that they are approaching a school zone. So,
to prevent any future accidents we must immediately get this area, area clearly
marked and to install raised marked crosswalks to prevent excessive speed and
to get driver's attention to the fact that they are in a school zone. Hopefully,
hopefully this will help prevent our keikis against any unfortunate
incide ... incidences as they are forced to cross this street on a daily basis. We
cannot wait until an accident occurs to get this issue on the fast track. Please
make every effort to move in this area for our children's sake. I just want to add
one thing. I had the opportunity to sit across the street in the parking area across
from 505 just to observe the traffic flow and when that, the ... the people coming
from the Puamana area going into our school. There's only one sign that says
20 miles an hour but that's right by Shaw and tourist aren't, aren't going to be
aware of that sign and it's considerably fast traffic going right towards our school.
Whereas the traffic flow from the banyan tree towards our school is close or is
slower because of, you know, all the traffic that's there and the pedestrians. But
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it's considerably faster going towards our school and that's right where our kids
have to cross everyday for recess. So, thank you for your time.
MS. JAMES: Thank you. Mary James, owner and operator of Maui Beach Front
Rentals located in Lahaina. And I'm here on behalf of my own business as well
as the Kahana Outriggers Association and homeowners that I represent in
managing their properties primarily in the Kahana area. And it's reference to our
concern over the algae bloom that we've been experiencing in Kahana. And
Tom Denoto(?) the President of the Association for Kahana Outriggers has
prepared a statement addressing our concerns that I'd like to share with you. We
have a request of the Council Members and it's threefold. First, that the County
Council vote to include an approved funding for acquisition and operation of a
sand replenishment barge; second, that Mayor Apana expedites and secures the
appropriate permits for operation of the barge in West Maui waters; and third,
that sand replenishment begins now so that if the bloom reoccurs our
homeowners will be able to take decisive and effective action to clean our
waterfront. We cannot afford to wait and see if the algae bloom occurs this year
nor can we be complacent in our actions relying on past patterns of
reoccurrence. Last year, our shoreline was covered with decaying algae.
Visitors to our West Maui waters couldn't use the beaches or the ocean. The
smell was so offensive that most people near the area felt that there must be a
raw sewage leak. And as a manager of a business that relies on these visitors, I
was personally affected by this. We suffered a very substantial financial loss
because of this. The smell was so offensive that most people near the area felt
that it was necessary to leave the location. They did not leave just the west side
of MauL In some instances, we had quests that relocated to the other islands.
Attempts to clean the area were ineffective. If, the conventional methods of
picking up algae couldn't be utilized because there wasn't enough sand to cover
the rocks. Our situation hit the nightly news and tourist books. I actually had a
quest call, make an inquiry, and when I introduced the idea of Kahana was very
specific and addressed that in some very prominent Hawaii destination
magazines they specifically mentioned or cautioned readers to stay away from
the Kahana location because it's been plagued by an algae bloom, which
resulted in a very offensive smell. Our vacation renters demanded rental rate
concessions or worst yet they elected to move. In many instances, such moves
as I mentioned earlier were to other islands. The Council budget is replenished
each year in large part from property taxes and taxes associated with our tourist
trade. Don't kill the golden goose. If we are not able to properly handle a
reoccurring algae bloom, property values will decline, tourist will not return. The
translation is less tax money generation.
MS. McKAY: Good evening, Committee Chair Riki Hokama and Jo Anne Johnson. I'm
glad you're hanging in there for us. I have come today to talk in support of the
$80,000 for Honokowai Park. I'm speaking for Surreoptomist(?) International of
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West MauL Our members have been helping and serving the community for
over 27 years and this has become a concern of ours. For quite some time now,
we are concerned citizens have noticed that the condition of the park as well as
the equipment is outdated and in need of replacement. From a mere glance of
the park, one would question whether it was a park or a parking lot for the
neighbors in the surrounding area. Due to lack of attention in the park, there are
areas that are in need of grass planting, park equipment also needs replacing.
The matter was brought before the Mayor through petitions and County Parks
Director, Floyd Miyazono and they got us in contact with Jeff Anderson who's the
west side Parks and Recreation Director. He advised us that a request for park
improvement funds was submitted for the 2003 County Budget. He also
informed us that a plan was drawn up by Valerie McGee. Ms. McGee also
informed us that the proposed budget includes the sum of the $80,000 for the
improvement of Honokowai Park. There was at one time a five-year plan for the
40 County parks and with an annual budget of $150,000. We don't see that any
longer and question what happened to that. Please don't let the current condition
of Honokowai Park be our park standard. We deserve better. Our children
deserve better. I would like to end with a quote from an anonymous person but a
wise, very wise man. It says, what we have today is not ours. It's on loan to us
from our children. Mahalo.
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